

Community Sport and Recreation Infrastructure Fund

Stream 2: New Builds/Signature New Builds

Program Guidelines

August 19, 2024

Application intake period: August 19, 2024 – March 31, 2027

Table of Contents

In	troduction	4
Ρ	rogram Overview	4
Ρ	rogram Objectives	5
Ε	ligibility Requirements	5
	Eligible Applicants	5
	Ineligible Applicants	6
	Partnership Applications	6
	Eligible Projects	7
	Eligible Project Expenses	8
	Ineligible Project Expenses	8
F	unding Amounts and Terms	9
	Provincial Cost Sharing	9
	Special Consideration	9
	Terms of Funding	10
Ρ	rogram Assistance	10
Η	How to Apply	
	Step 1: Access or Create your My Ontario Account	10
	Step 2: Complete the CSRIF Stream 2 Application	. 11
	Submission Notifications	. 11
	Transfer Payment Ontario Client Care	12
R	equired Documents	12
	Completed Application Form	.12
	Business Case Template – Project Details	12
	Audited Financial Statements	12
	Proof of Ownership or Lease	.12
	Proof of ownership	.13
	Lease agreement	13
	Proof of Legal Status	.13
	Board Motion/Endorsement/Resolution	13
	Corporate Structure	.14

Partnership Agreements	14
Request for Special Consideration form	14
Supporting Documentation	14
Plans/Designs/Details	14
Financial Resources, Quotes and Estimates	15
Letters of Support	15
ssessment Process and Criteria	15
Stage One: Completeness and Eligibility Confirmation	15
Stage Two: Application Assessment	16
Assessement Criteria Details	16
otification, Confirmation and Accountability	18
Notification	18
Confirmation	18
Accountability	18
Disclaimer	19
Duty to Consult	19
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act	20
ppendix A: Application Submission Checklist	21
Municipalities	21
Local Services Boards	21
Not-for-Profit Organizations	21
Indigenous Organizations and Communities	22
Indigenous Communities	22
Indigenous Organizations	22
For-Profit Organizations	23

Introduction

The Community Sport and Recreation Infrastructure Fund (**CSRIF**) is a \$200 million capital funding program delivered by the Ministry of Sport (**the Ministry**) to revitalize existing community sport and recreation infrastructure and support the construction of new facilities across the province.

The CSRIF will be delivered over three years (2024-25 to 2026-27) through two streams:

- Stream 1: Repair and Rehabilitation
- Stream 2: New Builds/Signature New Builds

This guide provides instructions on how to apply for **Stream 2**. **Please review it in detail before applying**.

For instructions on how to apply for **Stream 1: Repair and Rehabilitation**, please see the program guidelines for <u>Stream 1</u>.

Program Overview

The purpose of Stream 2 is to invest in new, transformative community sport and recreation infrastructure, including assets that do not currently exist in a community or the replacement of existing assets that have reached the end of their lifespan.

Eligible applicants include:

- Municipalities
- Local services boards
- Not-for-profit organizations
- Indigenous communities and organizations
- For-profit organizations

Please refer to the <u>Eligibility Requirements</u> section of this document for full details on eligibility criteria.

Eligible applicants may apply to the Ministry under Stream 2 for project funding up to \$10 million to support projects that will result in building new or replacing existing community sport and recreation facilities. CSRIF is a cost-sharing program and the provincial contribution will vary based on the eligible applicant and project type. Please refer to the Funding Amounts and Terms section of this document for more details.

Approved projects must be completed, with all eligible project expenses incurred, no later than March 31, 2027.

Eligible applicants can submit only **one application** under Stream 2.

Applications for Stream 2 are accepted on an ongoing basis until funding has been fully allocated.

Please note that there is only one application intake for this program.

Applications must be submitted through Transfer Payment Ontario (**TPON**). Incomplete applications will not be accepted.

The CSRIF is a discretionary and non-entitlement program, and there is no guarantee of funding. There is no appeal process for unsuccessful applicants to the program.

Program Objectives

The CSRIF aims to meet community need and improve the capacity of municipalities, local services boards, not-for-profit organizations and Indigenous organizations and communities, and for-profit organizations in Ontario that support the delivery of community sport and recreation programming.

The CSRIF aims to create local jobs, strengthen and enliven communities, provide Ontarians with opportunities to participate in sport and recreation activities, and support the health and well-being of children, families and seniors across Ontario. In addition, the CSRIF will invest in major sport and recreation infrastructure that will lead to more opportunities to host provincial, national, and international sporting events.

Eligibility Requirements

Eligible Applicants

In order to be eligible to apply to Stream 2, an applicant must meet **all** of the following 3 criteria:

- The applicant operates or manages a sport or recreation facility/space or other community facility/space that offers sport or recreation programming.
- The applicant owns or has a long-term lease agreement for the community facility/ space or land and has the necessary authority or permission to undertake the project.

- The applicant must be one of the following:
 - o A municipality in Ontario.
 - A local services board in Ontario.
 - A not-for-profit organization that has been incorporated federally or provincially for at least one year as of the date of application submission, and that has a head office in the Province of Ontario.
 - An Indigenous organization or community that:
 - is a legal entity (has been established by or under legislation, has been federally or provincially incorporated as a not-for-profit organization, is a First Nations community); and
 - is one of the following:
 - a First Nations band located in Ontario;
 - a local, regional or provincial organization, located in Ontario, established to represent a First Nation, Inuit or Métis people or group of First Nations, Inuit or Métis peoples; or
 - an Indigenous-led service provider located in Ontario.
 - A for-profit organization that has been incorporated federally or provincially for at least one year as of the date of the application submission, and that has a head office in the Province of Ontario.

Ineligible Applicants

- Federal and provincial agencies.
- Universities and colleges.
- Educational institutions, schools or school authorities.
- Hospitals, medical or health care facilities.
- Sole proprietorships and/or unincorporated businesses.
- For-profit organizations that require membership fees to access facilities and services.
- Entities receiving funding from other Ontario provincial grant programs for the same capital project.
- Entities that are not legally established by or under legislation or federally or provincially incorporated, or those that have been incorporated for less than one year prior to the application submission.
- Entities in default of the terms and conditions of any grant or loan agreement with any ministry or agency of the Government of Ontario at the date of the application submission for this program.

Partnership Applications

Eligible applicants can partner with other eligible and/or ineligible applicants on CSRIF projects. Partnership applications for this program will require formal written agreements to be in place between the organizations involved, and those agreements must be submitted as part of the lead applicant's CSRIF application.

The lead applicant must be an eligible applicant and will be responsible for managing the project and meeting all the terms and conditions associated with receiving the grant funding, including entering into the transfer payment agreement (**TPA**) with the Ministry and maintaining records and reporting if the application is successful. An applicant can only be the lead on one application under Stream 2.

Eligible Projects

To be an eligible project for Stream 2, the project must:

- Occur in the Province of Ontario.
- Be for the construction of a new or replacement sport or recreation facility/space or other community facility/space that offers sport or recreation programming.
- Be for a community facility/space in Ontario that is open primarily for use by the public and that will continue to be open primarily for use by the public upon the completion of the project.
- Be submitted by an applicant that meets the eligibility requirements.
- Not be receiving any Ontario provincial funding for the same project.

Examples of eligible Stream 2 projects include:

- Public infrastructure projects for which there is a demonstrated need, such as replacing an existing facility that has reached the end of its lifespan to meet community programming needs.
- Projects that make transformative investments in community sport or recreation infrastructure, including the repurposing or expansion of existing structures to create net new community sport or recreation facilities.
- Building new facilities that do not exist in the province/region that attract new programming, net new employment, retain jobs, and provide economic impact for local communities and businesses such as an increase in tourism, new highperformance facilities to attract and host large sporting events, create or increase collaboration with local businesses.
- **Signature New Builds**, which are defined as high-profile projects that will be recognized for innovative design, or for having significant community and economic impact, or iconic status within the sport sector. These projects will serve as symbols

of progress in sustainability and technology and will have a positive influence on the people of Ontario.

Eligible Project Expenses

For projects approved for Stream 2, eligible project expenses are those incurred for, and directly related to, specific project costs, incurred solely for the successful development and delivery of the project, and deemed to be reasonable by the Ministry, in its sole discretion.

Eligible project expenses include:

- Development costs associated with construction, such as the development of plans or permits for the project; note, however, that these costs are limited to 20 per cent of the total CSRIF grant.
- Project management costs, such as project-related fees paid to professionals, technical personnel, consultants, and contractors specifically engaged to undertake the project.
- Transportation and delivery costs.
- Fixed equipment and technology costs, such as large-scale equipment for installation (e.g., furnaces, boilers, sound equipment).
- Construction and/or renovation costs, including costs for project materials, labour for construction and/or installation.
- Ontario Builds signage costs to purchase, produce and install an Ontario Builds sign at the project site, which is a requirement for all approved projects.

Ineligible Project Expenses

Ineligible project expenses include:

- Capital costs related to the project that are incurred before the date on the Minister's letter approving CSRIF funds for the project.
- Non-fixed equipment (e.g., vehicles) costs.
- Any costs not directly paid by the recipient.
- Taxes, regardless of rebate eligibility.
- Legal, audit or interest fees.
- In-kind contributions.
- Long-term debt financing.
- Costs incurred for cancelled projects.
- Leasing or rental of equipment costs not directly related to the capital project.

- Costs associated with ongoing operating expenses, including administrative costs, current/existing staff salaries, employee benefits, rent and utilities.
- Costs associated with the operation of capital assets.
- Costs associated with routine facility/property maintenance.
- Costs associated with program delivery.
- Costs associated with the purchasing and/or acquisition of land.
- Costs associated with developing the business case(s) for the purposes of applying for and obtaining CSRIF funds.
- Costs associated with leasing land, buildings, fixtures and equipment (except the temporary rental of equipment directly related to completing the capital project).
- Costs associated with fundraising.
- Costs associated with recipient travel.
- Costs associated with construction or renovation that will not result in the creation of net new sport or recreation facilities.
- Any other costs, as determined by the Ministry from time to time and in its sole discretion, to be ineligible project expenses.

Funding Amounts and Terms

Eligible applicants may apply to the Ministry under Stream 2 for project funding up to \$10 million.

Provincial Cost Sharing

The CSRIF is a cost-sharing program where the provincial contribution to the project will vary based on the eligible applicant type:

- Municipalities, local services boards, and not-for-profit organizations can request up to 50 per cent of eligible project costs.
- Indigenous organizations and communities (as defined in <u>Eligible Applicants</u> above) can request a provinical contribution of up to 90 per cent of eligible project costs.
- For-profit organizations can request up to 25 per cent of eligible project costs.

Successful recipients (and their partners, if applicable) must cover the remaining project expenses.

No other Ontario provincial funding can be used towards the project.

Special Consideration

Under unique and exceptional circumstances, the Ministry may consider a provincial contribution of up to 70 per cent of eligible project costs for not-for-profit organizations, local services boards or municipalities with a population of less than 20,000.

Additionally, for Signature New Builds, the Ministry may consider a provincial contribution over \$10 million.

To request either of these special considerations, the applicant will be required to submit a Request for Special Consideration form with a strong rationale that justifies the request with the specific community needs and benefits clearly stated. The Request for Special Consideration form is available through TPON.

Terms of Funding

Approved projects must be completed with all eligible project expenses incurred no later than March 31, 2027.

CSRIF funds will be paid in installments based on a payment schedule that will be determined using project deliverables. A 10 per cent holdback of the funds will be released upon the completion of the project and the Ministry's satisfactory review of the recipient's final report.

Program Assistance

If you have questions regarding the program, including those related to eligibility, please contact the local <u>Regional Development Advisor</u> for your area.

General program inquiries can be directed to: CSRIF@ontario.ca

How to Apply

Applications must be submitted through Transfer Payment Ontario (TPON).

TPON requires Google Chrome internet browser and Adobe Acrobat Reader to fill out the PDF application form.

Step 1: Access or Create your My Ontario Account

Effective April 17, 2023, the Government of Ontario changed the way public users access secure government services, including TPON. Users who have a ONe-key or

GO Secure ID will be required to create a My Ontario Account for secure access to TPON. Existing TPON users will have the opportunity to migrate their profile to My Ontario Account by creating an account with their TPON associated email.

New users to TPON will create a My Ontario Account profile or can use a previously created My Ontario Account. For instructions, visit <u>Transfer Payment Ontario</u>.

Once registered, or if you are already registered, you must ensure all your organization's profile information is correct and up to date. This includes ensuring your My Ontario Account is associated with the correct organization. For instructions on joining an organization, please refer to the TPON Joining an Organization guide.

Note: Setting up an account may take up to five business days so allow at least one week to register before starting the application process.

Step 2: Complete the CSRIF Stream 2 Application

- Log in to TPON.
- Click on "Submit for Funding" and select the CSRIF Stream 2: New Builds/Signature New Builds.
- Review or complete sections in the online application as per the guidelines below.
- Submit your request for funding along with all mandatory attachments.

Once an application has been started on TPON, it may be downloaded at any point and returned to later.

For help with this process, refer to the <u>TPON Submitting for Funding guide</u>. You can also watch the <u>TPON How to Submit for Funding Video</u> or access the <u>video transcript</u>.

Submission Notifications

When you submit your application, you will receive an auto-generated confirmation email. If you have not received a confirmation email within 48 hours of your submission, please call TPON Client Care.

The primary contact provided by the applicant will receive any subsequent correspondence regarding the application. It is important to provide accurate and up-to-date contact information and to regularly monitor the primary contact's phone and email to enable timely communication regarding the status of the application.

Transfer Payment Ontario Client Care

Technical questions related to TPON must be directed to TPON Client Care.

Monday - Friday 8:30 a.m. to 5 p.m. (ET, excluding statutory and government holidays).

- Telephone: 416-325-6691 or 1-855-216-3090
- TTY/Teletypewriter (for the hearing impaired): 416-325-3408 / Toll Free: 1-800-268-7095
- Email: <u>TPONCC@ontario.ca</u>

Required Documents

The CSRIF Stream 2 requires additional documentation to be provided at the time of application submission and must be uploaded to the TPON system. An application missing any required documents will be considered incomplete and will not proceed to assessment. Required documentation may vary depending on the applicant type or project (see below for details). Please refer to the Application Checklist in <u>Appendix A</u> in this document when submitting your application to ensure all items are attached.

Completed Application Form

Ensure you have filled in all required sections for the application form for Stream 2 available in TPON and that the form is electronically signed and dated.

Required for: All applicants.

Business Case Template – Project Details

Complete the Business Case Template – Project Details form available through TPON. Ensure you have filled in all mandatory sections for your project.

Required for: All applicants.

Audited Financial Statements

Provide a complete and unabridged copy of the audited financial statements from the previous fiscal year.

Required for: All applicants, except municipalities.

Proof of Ownership or Lease

Provide documentation that indicates the applicant is the owner or lease-holder for the facility and/or land on which the project will be built.

Required for: All applicants, except for on-reserve projects carried out by Indigenous communities.

Proof of ownership

Examples of proof of ownership include: a current year tax bill with roll number, current year Property Assessment Notice with roll number from the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation (MPAC), land transfer document, title or deed. Municipalities will need to provide a signed letter from a senior administrator at the municipality confirming ownership instead of providing an ownership document.

Lease agreement

A lease agreement must be valid with at least five years remaining at the time of the application submission. The lease agreement should clearly state the applicant has the necessary permission or authority to undertake the project. If an existing lease agreement does not have at least five years remaining at the time of the application submission, applicants are required to submit a letter from the lessor documenting the lessor's commitment to renew the lease agreement for a minimum of five years and that the applicant will continue to have the necessary permission or authority to undertake the project for the duration of the lease agreement.

Proof of Legal Status

Provide articles of incorporation, letters patent, certificate of status, Special Acts of Incorporation or other documentation that demonstrates that the organization has been a legal entity with a head office in Ontario for at least one year at the time of the application submission.

Required for: All applicants, except municipalities.

Board Motion/Endorsement/Resolution

Provide evidence of support for the applicant to undertake the project.

Required for: All applicants.

- For not-for-profit organizations and for-profit organizations, this may include a board motion, fully completed, signed and dated.
- For municipalities or local services boards, this may include a council resolution or endorsement.

 For Indigenous organizations or communities, this may include a First Nation Band Council Resolution, Métis Community Council Resolution or Motion.

Corporate Structure

A document that sets out the corporate structure of the applicant, including the parent, all affiliates and all related entities of the applicant and their relationships to one another.

Required for: For-profit organizations and partner applications with for-profit partners.

Partnership Agreements

Provide a copy of any formal written agreements in place between the partners involved in the project.

Required for: All projects that have project partners.

Request for Special Consideration form

To request special consideration (see <u>Special Consideration</u> above) for an increased provincial contribution, complete and submit a Request for Special Consideration form available through TPON as an additional attachment. Submission of this request does not guarantee that the Province will approve the project at the requested contribution amount.

Required for:

- Not-for-profit organizations, local services boards and municipalities with a population of less than 20,000 who are seeking special consideration for a provincial contribution of up to 70 per cent of eligible project costs.
- Applicants seeking more than \$10 million of provincial contribution for a Signature New Build project.

Supporting Documentation

These items are strongly encouraged to support your project application.

Plans/Designs/Details

Provide any plans, designs, or details created that support your project application, as may be available and applicable. This may include any of the following:

- Feasibility study.
- Five-year capital plan.

- Comprehensive or strategic community plan.
- Gap analysis.
- Asset Condition Reporting System (ACRS) report.
- Facility condition assessment report.
- Accessibility audit report.
- Photos and/or diagrams of the current state of the facility.
- Detailed design plan documents.
- Detailed operation and maintenance plans for the facility following the project completion.

Financial Resources, Quotes and Estimates

Provide evidence of the following, where available:

- Confirmed financial resources to carry out the project.
- Quotes for costs for individual goods and services valued above \$5,000.
- Cost estimate documents (Class A preferred).

Letters of Support

Provide letters of support for the project from user groups and/or financial institutions, including those that reflect impacts of the project and any financial commitments.

Assessment Process and Criteria

The assessment process will consist of two stages.

Stage One: Completeness and Eligibility Confirmation

To be considered in the assessment process, an application must:

- Be complete with all required supporting documentation, as described in <u>Required Documents</u> section and the Application Checklist (<u>Appendix A</u>) and received with the application submission;
- **Be submitted by an eligible applicant** as defined in the <u>Eligibility Requirements</u> section; and
- Meet project eligibility criteria as defined in the Eligibility Requirements section.

To determine compliance and suitability with the CSRIF criteria, the Ministry will:

- Confirm eligibility and undertake due diligence checks for all applicants;
- Confirm the project meets basic CSRIF requirements and is achievable within the program timelines; and
- Undertake a risk assessment and financial assessment of the applicant to confirm their capacity to manage the proposed project.

It is up to applicants to ensure they have complied with all program requirements and provide all necessary documentation.

Incomplete and/or ineligible applications will not continue to Stage Two.

Stage Two: Application Assessment

During the second stage of the assessment process, the Ministry will assess all eligible applications.

Applications will be measured against the following criteria:

- Community Need
- Community Support
- Economic Impact
- Addresses a Gap in Services
- Operating/Financial Capacity
- Value For Money

These are described below in more detail. It is the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that their application provides sufficient detail and information to demonstrate the project's alignment with each criteria.

Applications that fail to meet a minimum threshold will not be considered for funding.

Assessement Criteria Details Community Need

Projects should clearly address a defined community sport or recreation need or priority. Applicants should clearly state the need and how it was identified as well as the anticipated outcomes of the project. The information provided should be detailed and speak to the importance of the project in addressing specified outcomes.

Community Support

Applicants should demonstrate that there is support in the community for the proposed project, including details of community/stakeholder meetings, project partnerships, and confirmed/anticipated user groups for the facility.

Economic Impact

Applicants should demonstrate the economic impact the project will have in the community, region, and/or province. The application should speak to the creation of jobs (temporary or permanent) as a direct result of the project. The applicant should also speak to any tourism, sport hosting, operational cost-savings, and direct or indirect economic impacts that are anticipated because of the project.

Addresses a Gap in Services

Projects should address a clearly defined gap in services. Applicants should demonstrate that similar services are not available within a reasonable distance and/or that this project will remove, reduce, or prevent other barriers to participation in the community. This will differ between rural and urban areas, and applicants are responsible to provide evidence with respect to the uniqueness of their project.

Operating/Financial Capacity

Applicants should demonstrate comprehensive long-term plans for operating and maintaining the facility. This includes demonstrating financial capacity to support operations without seeking additional government support. Applications should include information on available resources and anticipated costs (e.g., staffing requirements, future maintenance).

Applicants should demonstrate capacity to undertake and complete the project within the timeframe of the program. This includes demonstrating sufficient financial and human resources to support the project. Applications should clearly demonstrate project readiness (e.g., agreements between project partners, details of design work, expected completion dates), and identify potential risks and mitigation strategies.

Value for Money

Projects should represent good value for money with funding requests clearly aligned with demonstrated financial need. Applicants should demonstrate that projects will be carried out in the most efficient manner possible, using appropriate procurement processes and maximizing individuals and/or communities served. Applicants should present clear justification for all costs, and how costs relate to meeting outcomes. Services to be provided should relate clearly and directly to established community needs, and service duplication should be avoided. Applicants should demonstrate

considerations taken to identify cost-effective options for the project with consideration of life cycle costs, energy efficiency, and operational savings where possible.

Notification, Confirmation and Accountability

Notification

The Ministry will inform each applicant in writing of its funding decision. Decisions at the time of notification are considered final, and there is no appeal process for the CSRIF program.

Confirmation

Successful applicants will be provided a conditional letter setting out the grant amount with funding contingent on written confirmation that project financing has been secured by the successful applicant from all identified sources. The Ministry may also request from the successful applicant additional documentation or information prior to entering into the TPA with the successful applicant.

Accountability

To receive the funds for its project, the successful applicant will be required to:

- Sign a TPA with the Ministry, which will outline the terms and conditions for the
 receipt of the funds; and will, amongst other terms and conditions, require the
 recipient of the funds to be in compliance with, and to continue to comply with, all
 federal and provincial laws and regulations, all municipal by-laws, and any other
 orders, rules and by-laws related to any aspect of the project, the funds, or both.
- Provide a Certificate of Insurance that indicates the recipient carries at least \$5
 million commercial general liability insurance coverage for the duration of the TPA
 and add "His Majesty the King in right of Ontario, His ministers, agents, appointees
 and employees" as an Additional Insured on this coverage before the TPA can be
 executed.
- Install and display Ontario Builds signage at the project site throughout the duration of the project.
- Report back to the Ministry on the use of the funds, project stage deliverables and outcomes achieved, including the submission of interim reports, a final expenditure report, a final work plan report, a certificate of completion, a building evaluation and inspection, an audited financial schedule, invoices, receipts and proof of payment of

- eligible project expenses and any other reports or information the Ministry may require.
- Permit the Ministry to verify/audit information submitted (at the discretion of the Ministry) to ensure that it is complete and accurate, and that the funds were used for the purpose(s) intended.

Recipients will:

- Be accountable to the Ministry for all funds and project components and will be the final decision-making authority among partners (if applicable) for the project under the TPA.
- Manage their project plan to meet financial and accountability reporting requirements and deliverables, as identified in the TPA.
- Be responsible for measuring results and reporting on their performance as required by their TPA.

Disclaimer

The CSRIF is a discretionary and non-entitlement program. Even if an applicant has submitted a complete application and met all program criteria, there is no guarantee that the applicant will be approved for funding. The Ministry reserves the right to fund or not fund applications submitted to the program. For those projects approved for the program, the Ministry's decision on what percentage of provincial contribution may be made towards the eligible project costs of a project will depend on a number of factors, including the type of applicant, project feasibility and the availability of funds in the program. There is no appeal process for unsuccessful applicants to the program.

The Ministry reserves the right to impose any terms and conditions in the TPA that it deems reasonable in connection with disbursing funding under this program.

Funds may be rescinded or recovered when the applicant is in violation of the TPA, or where the applicant indicates to the Ministry that they no longer need the grant or cannot complete the activities of the project.

Duty to Consult

Applicants should be aware that the decision to fund a project may give rise to the Government of Ontario's duty to consult with Indigenous communities if the project could have an adverse impact on established or asserted Aboriginal or treaty rights. The consultation process may result in accommodation which may alter the project or a

request that the applicant undertake delegated procedural aspects of consultation activities. The responsibility for ensuring the duty to consult Indigenous communities is fulfilled remains with the Government of Ontario.

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act

Applicants should be aware that Government of Ontario institutions are bound by the *Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act*, R.S.O. 1990, C. F. 31 (**FIPPA**) and any information provided to the Ministry in connection with an application may be subject to disclosure in accordance with the FIPPA.

If an applicant believes that any of the information it submits in connection with its application is confidential and wishes to protect the confidentiality of such information, the applicant should clearly mark the information "confidential." If the Ministry receives a request for access to the information marked "confidential", the Ministry will contact the applicant so that it may, if it wishes, make representations concerning the release of the requested information. Marking the information "confidential" does not mean that the information will not be released if and as required under the FIPPA.

Applicants are advised that the names and addresses of organizations awarded grants, the amount of the grant awarded, and the purpose for which grants are awarded is information made available to the public.

Appendix A: Application Submission Checklist

Municipalities

- Application form
- Business Case Template Project Details
- Proof of Ownership or Lease
- Board Motion/Endorsement/Resolution
- Partnership Agreements (required where partnerships are involved)
- Request for Special Consideration form (required if requesting special consideration for increased provincial contribution)
- Supporting documentation, as may be available or applicable to the project:
 - Plans/designs/details
 - Financial resources/quotes/estimates
 - Letters of support

Local Services Boards

- Application form
- Business Case Template Project Details
- Audited Financial Statements
- Proof of Ownership or Lease
- Proof of Legal Status
- Board Motion/Endorsement/Resolution
- Partnership Agreements (required where partnerships are involved)
- Request for Special Consideration form (required if requesting special consideration for increased provincial contribution)
- Supporting documentation, as may be available or applicable to the project:
 - Plans/designs/details
 - Financial resources/quotes/estimates
 - Letters of support

Not-for-Profit Organizations

- Application form
- Business Case Template Project Details
- Audited Financial Statements
- Proof of Ownership or Lease
- Proof of Legal Status

- Board Motion/Endorsement/Resolution
- Partnership agreements (required where partnerships are involved)
- Request for Special Consideration form (required if requesting special consideration for increased provincial contribution)
- Supporting documentation, as may be available or applicable to the project:
 - o Plans/designs/details
 - Financial resources/quotes/estimates
 - Letters of support

Indigenous Communities and Organizations

Indigenous Communities

- Application form
- Business Case Template Project Details
- Audited Financial Statements
- Proof of Ownership or Lease (note: not required for on-reserve projects carried out by Indigenous communities)
- Proof of Legal Status
- Board Motion/Endorsement/Resolution
- Partnership Agreements (required where partnerships are involved)
- Request for Special Consideration form (required if requesting special consideration for increased provincial contribution)
- Supporting documentation, as may be available or applicable to the project:
 - Plans/designs/details
 - Financial resources/quotes/estimates
 - Letters of support

Indigenous Organizations

- Application form
- Business Case Template Project Details
- Audited Financial Statements
- Proof of Ownership or Lease
- Proof of Legal Status
- Board Motion/Endorsement/Resolution
- Partnership Agreements (required where partnerships are involved)
- Request for Special Consideration form (required if requesting special consideration for increased provincial contribution)
- Supporting documentation, as may be available or applicable to the project:

- Plans/designs/details
- o Financial resources/quotes/estimates
- o Letters of support

For-Profit Organizations

- Application form
- Business Case Template Project Details
- Audited Financial Statements
- Proof of Ownership or Lease
- Proof of Legal Status
- Board Motion/Endorsement/Resolution
- Corporate Structure
- Partnership Agreements (required where partnerships are involved)
- Request for Special Consideration form (required if requesting special consideration for increased provincial contribution)
- Supporting documentation, as may be available or applicable to the project:
 - o Plans/designs/details
 - Financial resources/quotes/estimates
 - Letters of support